
IOWA SITE INVENTORY
Division of Historic Preservation 
Iowa State Historical Department 
26 E. Market St., Iowa City, Iowa 52240

JUL -21981

Site Number 27-Q14-Q01 
District Nome

Map Reference * 27-014-001
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DESCRIPTION
Smith, Wetherell and Gage,

9. Date of Constructionl908 ArchitectXBuiider Des Moines, Architects
10. Building Type: Dsingle family dwelling D m ultiple family dwelling Q commercial 

Dindustrial Qeducational Qother institutional Efpublic Qreligious Q agricultural
11. Exterior Walls: Qclapboard Qstone Qbrick D board * batten Qshingles Dstucco 

p^other Stone trim________________________________________
12. Structural System: Qwood frame with interlocking joints

Dwood frame with light members (balloon frame) Qmasonry load-bearing walls
Diron frame Dsteet frame with curtain walls Dreinforced concrete
D other__________________________________________________

13. Condition: Dexcellent Qgood Qfair Deteriorated 
14-. Integrity: Sioriginal site Qmoved-if so, when?

Notes on alterations, additions (with dates and architect, if known) and any other notable
features of building and site:

Corinthian-type pilasters and very wide cornice with lentils and egg-and-
tart molding on first and second floors. 
Extensive use of dropped ceiling.

Related Outbuildings and Property: Dbarn Dother farm structures 
Dcarriage house D garage Dprivy Dother ————————————————————————— 

16. Is the building endangered/ £8 no Dyes-if so, why? ———————————————————

15

17. Surroundings of the building: Do pen land D woodland D scattered outbuildings 
Ddensely built-up Klcommercial Dindustrial presidential Dother_________

18. Map 19. Photo
Roll__Frame .View



SIGNIFICANCE (indicate sources of information for all statements)

2O. Architectural Significance
Qa. Key structure/individually may qualify for the National Register
Db. Contributing structure DC. Not eligible/intrusion
This courthouse is a variation on the Renaissance Revival. Clock tower is a 
prominent feature, as are the nodified Gibhs surrounds on second and third 
story windows.

21. HHIstorical Significance Theme(s)——Politicc/GovQrnmant—— 
^Sa. Key .structure/individually may qualify for the National Register 

D b. Contributing structure DC. Not eligible/intrusion

This courthouse is locally significant as the historical focus of county 
government, and of the political power and prestige derived from the 
community's status as the county seat. As center of county government, 
an Iowa town was reasonably assured of economic and population growth, 
and a prominent *ole in local social and political life. The county— 
courthouse represents a significant public investment in a structure 
built not simply for utilitarian purposes, but also as. a monument as­ 
sociated with the historical importance of county organization and de­ 
velopment.

See Continuation Sheet

22. Sources (for primary and secondary sources, give complete facts of publication: 
author, title, place of publication, date, etc.):

Andreas, A.T. Illustrated Historical Atlas of Iowa. Chicago: Andreas
Atlas Co., 1875. 

Pratt, Leltoy G. The Counties and Courthouses of Iowa. Mason City, Iowa:
Klipto Printing and Office Supply Co., 1977. 

Stanek, Edward and Jacqueline. Iowa's Magnificent County Courthouses.
Des Jfoines: Wallace-Homestead Book Co., 1976. 
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DECATUR COUNTY

Decatur County's first courthouse was erected in Leon in 1851 for a 
total expenditure of $375. Made of logs, it was 20 by 22 feet and 14 
feet high. After only a few years, the crude log structure was out­ 
grown and a new courthouse built to replace it. The old courthouse 
was turned into a hotel.

The buildings which followed this old log courthouse, until the one 
which stands today, seemed to exist under a streak of bad luck. The 
first was a small frame building which was soon declared unusable. 
A new one was begun but a windstorm destroyed it before it could be 
finished. The next was razed by a fire on March 31, 1874. Because of 
a lack of fireproof vaults in which to store the valuable county 
records, they were aD burned in the fire except for two books which 
were rescued. Fortunately, $33,0(30 in cash was kept safely in the 
Treasurer's vault.

After the misfortune of the previous courthouses, the people of the 
county were determined to build one which would be more resistant to 
fire and wind. Consequently, in 1875, at an approximate cost of 
$20,000, a brick courthouse was completed. However, as it happened, 
it was not burglar-proof. Two thieves decided to crack the Treasurer's 
safe. They broke in during the night and worked under the theory 
that if they set off a large explosion under the safe, the door would 
spring open. However, instead of blowing open the door of the safe, 
they blew up the entire side of the building. The safe was later found 
under the rubble and intact. It was the same one that survived the 
previous courthouse fire. Because the day on which this occurred was 
April 1,- 1877, many people who heard the explosion thought only that 
someone was playing an April Fool joke. The two-year-old courthouse 
was rebuilt at great expense and served the county until 1908 when 
the next courthouse was completed. This time the courthouse was built 
of "iron, steel, stone, tile, brick, marble, and granite"—completely 
fireproof and a safe place to keep valuable records. This must have 
been a desirable combination, as this excellent structure is still 
standing today.

—from Stanek, Edward, and Jacqueline Stanek, 
Iowa's Magnificent County Courthouses. Des 
Moines: Wallace-Homestead Book Co., 1976.

60


